
Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the Financial 
Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Financial Statements as a 
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. We have 
fulfilled the responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements section of our report, including in relation to these 
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures 
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying Financial 
Statements. 

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with 
the Code of Ethics issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of India (JCAI) together with the independence 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's 
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Financial Statements. 

Basis for Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Financial 
Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (''the Act") in the manner so required and give a 
true and fair view in conformity with the lndian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with 
the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, the profit and total comprehensive income, 
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of BULI CHEMICALS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED ("1he 
Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that 
date. and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as ·· 
financial statements"). 
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The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the 
preparation of these financial, statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position. financial performance, 
total comprehensive income. changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance w ith the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and 

Management's Respon ibility for the Financial tatements 

ln connection with our audit of the financial statements. our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have 
performed. we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to communicate 
the matter to those charged with the governance as required under SA 720 'The Auditor's Responsibility relating to 
other Information ·. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon. 

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to 
Board's Report, Busines Responsibility Report. Corporate Governance and Shareholder's Information. but does not 
include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Director's Report is expected to be made available 
to us after the Dare of this Auditor's Report. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

• Performing testing on selected statistical samples of revenue 
transactions recorded during the year end. 

"' Performed test check of sales transactions to verify 
contractual terms of invoices, acknowledged delivery 
receipts and tested the transit time to deliver the goods. 

The Company has manual and automated (information 
technology - IT) controls on recording revenue and accruals 
for sales returns and discounts. We have evaluated and tested 
design and operating effectiveness of controls addressing 
risk. 

• Focusing on the Company's revenue recognition for 
compliance with Ind AS. 

" Understood the processes and controls around established in 
recognition of revenue. 

Our audit procedures included the following: 
How our audit addressed the Kev audit matter 

There is also a risk of revenue being 
overstated due to fraud resulting from 
pressure on the Company to achieve 
performance targets at the reporting 
period end. Accordrngly, fraud and cut­ 
off risks in revenue recognition are 
considered as a key audit matter 

Due to the Company's sales under 
various contractual terms and across the 
country, deliver) to customers in ,3, 
different regions might take different 
time periods and may result m 
undelivered goods at the period end. 

Revenue Recognition 
Ind AS 115 requires to consider 
management to account revenue as per 
terms of contracts with customers and on 
fulfillment of performance obligations 

1 
Kev Audit Matter Sr. 



Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it 
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements. including the disclosures, and 
whether the Financial tatements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained. whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate. to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report, However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to 
cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 
and appropriate to prov idea basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error. as fraud may involve collusion. forgery. intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations. or the override of internal control. 

As pan of an audit in accordance with As, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. \\ e also: 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opiruon, 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, indiv idually or in the aggregate. they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

Auditor's Respon .ibilitie for the Audit of the Financial tatements 

The Board of Directors are responsible for ov erseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

In preparing the Financial ratements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to 
do so. 

detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; makingjudgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that w ere operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement. \\ hether due to fraud or error. 



L The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial 

3. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules.2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us: 

t) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the 
operating effectiv eness of such controls. refer to our separate Report in "Annexure B". Our report expresses 
an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls 
over financial reporting. 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024 taken on record 
by the Board of Directors. none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a 
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

d) In our opinion. the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act 

c) The Balance heel. the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of 
Changes in Fquity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant 
books of account. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by Jaw have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 
from our examination of those books. 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

2. As required by ection 143(3) of the Act. based on our audit we report that: 

I. As required by the Companies (Auditors' Report) Order, 2020 (the 'Order') issued by the Central Govenunent 
of India in terms of sect ion 143 ( 11) of the Act, we give in the · Annexure A' a statement on the matters 
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. to the extent applicable 

Report on Other Legal and Regulator) Requirements 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We 
describe these maners in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or 
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence. and where applicable, related safeguards. 

• 

We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating 
the results of our work: and (ii) to evaluate the effect of an} identified misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate w ith those charged with governance regarding. among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our 
audit. 



Place: Mumbai, 
Date: 30"' April, 2024 

UDI : 
For JMT & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 
Finn's Registration No. 104167W 

Partner 
Membership No.122651 

4. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of 
section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us. the remuneration 
paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. 
The remuneration paid to an) director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. 
The Ministry or Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197( 16) of the Act which 
are required to be commented upon by us. 

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an accounting software 
for rnaintaii ing its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and 
the same has operated throughout the ) ear for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. 
Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being 
tampered ,, ith. 

v. The Comp .. ny has not declared any Dividend during the year ended 31 March, 2024. nor has it 
proposed an) Dividendfor the year subject to approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting. Accordingly. the pro, isions of section 123 of the Companies Act. 2013 do not apply. 

JV. (a) The 1anagement has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as 
disclosed in note to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from 
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in an) 
other persons or entities. including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or 
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") by 
or on behalf of the Company or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries 
(b) The Management has represented that. to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in note 
to the accounts, no funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including 
foreign entities ('"Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, 
that the Company shall directly or indirectly. lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in 
an) manner whatsoever ( .. Ultimate Beneficiaries") by or on behalf of the Funding Parties or provide 
an) guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 
(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in 
the circumstances. nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations 
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule I l(e) contain any material mis-statement. 

iii There has been no delay in rransternng amounts. required to be transferred. to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Corn pan). 

ii The Company has made provision. as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for 
material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts. 

statements. 
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b) According 10 the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been 
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, at points of time 
during the ) car, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. In our opinion and 
according re the information and explanations given to us, the quarterly returns or statements 
comprising ( tock statei rents, book debt statements. statements on other Current Asset) filed 
by the Co11 nany \\ ith such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the 
unaudited- l )1-.s of account of the Company of the respective quarters and No material 
discrepancies have been observed. (Refer Note No 38 (x) of Notes to Account attach 
Fi ar ill 

a) In our 01 inion and according to the information and explanations given to us, physical 
verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the management. 
The procedure of phy sical verification of inventory followed by the management is 
reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the company and nature of business. The 
Company Ii.as maintained proper records of inventory. As per information available, the 
discrepancies noticed on verification between physical stock and book records were not 
material in relation 10 the operation of the company and the same have been properly dealt 
with in the l 1oks of account 

ii In respect of the Company 's Inventories: 

(e) According 10 the information and explanations given to us, there are no proceedings initiated or 
are pending against the company for holding an) Benarni property under the "Benami 
Transaction') (Prohibition Act. 1988 and Rules made thereunder. 

(d) According 10 the information and explanations given to us. the Company has not revalued its 
Property. Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both 
during the year. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the title deeds of aJI the immovable 
properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are 
duly executed in favor of the Jessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name 
of the com pan). 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company. the Company has a regular program of physical 
verification of its property, plant and equipment by which all property, plant and equipment 
are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this 
program. certain property, plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our 
opinion. this periodicity ol phy sical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of 
the Company and the nature of its assets. o material discrepancies were noticed on such 
verificat ion. 

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets. 

i. (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars. including quantitative 
details and situation of Property. Plant and Equipment and relevant details of right-of-use-assets 

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section 
of our report to the Members of BULl CHEMICALS INDLA PRIVATE LIMITED of even date) 

AN EXURE 'A' TO THE I DEPE:\OE T AUDITOR' REPORT 



(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, there is no loan or advance in the nature of loans granted falling due 
during the year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdue of 
existing loans or advances in the nature of loans given to same parties. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect of 
loans and advances in the nature of loans given. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis ofour examination 
of the records of the Company, in our opinion, in the case of loans and advances in the nature of 
loans given. the repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the 
repayments or receipts have been regular. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures 
conducted by us, in our opinion the guarantees provided during the year and the terms and conditions 
of the grant of loans and advances in the nature of Joans during the year are, prima facie, not 
prejudicial to the interest of the Company. 

Particulars Loans given to Employee 
(Rs. In Crores) 

Aggregate amount during the year 0.00 
- Other parties 

Balance Outstanding as at the Balance Sheet date- 0.00 
Other Parties 

(B) Based on the audit procedures carried out by us and as per the information and explanations 
given to us, the Company has granted advances in the nature of loans and loans given to other 
parties as below: 

enrure and other Company as below: ( Rs in Crores) 
Particulars Loans Investment in ICD 
Aggregate amount granted/ 
provided during the year 

- Joint Venture 0.00 0.00 
- Other Companies 0.00 0.00 

Balance outstanding as at the 
balance sheet date 

- Joint Venture 0.00 0.00 
- Other Companies 0.00 0.00 

(a) (A) (i) Based on the audit procedures carried out by us and as per the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has made Investment and granted loans and advance in Joint 
v 

111 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the Company, the Company has made investment in Joint venture and other company and the 
Company has not provided any guarantee and security to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or 
any other parties during the year. The Company has granted loans and advances in the nature of loans during 
the year to Joint venture and other parties, details of which are stated below. The Company has not provided 
guarantees or granted loans or advances in the nature ofloans during the year to limited liability partnerships 



a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or 
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender. 

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any 
b:mJc or financial institution or government or government authority. 

c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the 
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained 

ix 

v111 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously 
unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 196 I as 
income during the year. 

Name of Nature of Period(s) to Amount Forum where 
Statute Dues which the amount Involved dispute is pending 

relates 

- - No Outstanding Dues Pending- 

vii According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues: 
(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues. including 

Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs 
Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities. 

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees' State 
Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs Duty, Cess and other material 
statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more than six months from the 
date they became payable. 

(c) Details of dues oflncome Tax. Sales Tax, Service Tax, Excise Duty and Value Added Tax 
which have not been deposited as at March 31, 2024 on account of dispute are given below: 

v The Company has not accepted deposits during the year and does not have any unclaimed deposits as 
at March 31, 2024 and therefore, the provisions of the clause 3 ( v) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company. 

vi The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under section 148(1) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the Company. As observed and 
information provided to us, such accounts and records have been made and maintained by the Company. 
However, we have not made a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether they 
are accurate or complete. 

iv In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of grant of loans, making 
investments and providing guarantees and securities, as applicable 

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature 
of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment. 



XVI. (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of 
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clauses 3(xvi)(a) and 3(xvi)(b) of the Order are not applicable. 

(b) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made 

(b) However, according to the information & explanation given to us, there was no report of 
Internal Audit issued during the year. 

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into 
any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them during the year. 
Hence, provision of section 192 of the act are not applicable to the company 

XIV. (a)ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has internal audit system commensurate with size and nature of its business. 

( c) According to the information and explanations given to us, no whistle blower complaints 
have been received by the Company during the year. 

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3 (xii) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 

xiii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is in 
compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act. 2013 where applicable, for all 
transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed 
in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the 
auditors during the year in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government. 

xi. (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no 
fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been 
noticed or reported during the course of audit 

x. (a) The Company has not raised any monies by way of initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments) Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 

of the records of the Company, the Company has not made preferential allotment of shares during 
the year. Accordingly clause 3 (x)( b) of the order is not applicable to the Company . 

d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the 
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used 
for long-term purposes b) the Company 

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the 
financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from 
any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its Joint Venture, as defined in 
the Act. The Company does not hold any investment in any Subsidiaries or associate (as defined 
in the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2024. 

f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we 
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in 
its Joint Venture (as defined under the Act). 

• 



SANJA Y PICHHOLIA 
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Date : 30m April, 2024 
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For JMT & ASSOCIATES 
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(b) In respect of ongoing projects, the Company has transferred unspent Corporate Social 
Responsibility (CSR) amount as at the end of the previous financial year, to a Special account 
within a period of30 days from the end of the said financial year in compliance with the 
provision of section 135(6) of the Act. 

xx. (a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other than 
ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule V[I to the Companies Act 
in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the said Act. 
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable for the year. 

xviL The Company has incurred cash losses to the tune of Rs. 1.34 Crores in the current and in the 
immediately preceding financial year. 

xviii There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and we have taken into 
consideration the issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditors. 

xix. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial 
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial 
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the 
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence 
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that 
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable 
of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a 
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance 
as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the 
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that 
all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get 
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

(c) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit, 
the Group does not have any CICs. 

by the Reserve Bank of lndia. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable. 



A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Company. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting. assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness ofinternal control based on the assessed 
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks 
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting 
of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under 
Section 143(10) of the Companies Act.2013, to the extent applicable to an audit ofinternal financial 
controls. Those Standards and theGuidanceNote require that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial 
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company's policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets. the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, 
as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of BULi CHEMICALS 
INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company") as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit 
of the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause 
(i) of Sub-section 3 of ection 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

• 

ANNEXURE "B" TO THE INDEPE DENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
(Referred to in paragraph 2(t) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' 

section of our report to the Members of BULi CHEMICALS INDIA PRIVATE LIMlTED of even 
date) 



Place: Mumbai, 
Date: 30111 April, 2024 

SA~ 
Partner 
Membership No.122651 

UDIN: !>.1ill.2.GSl9f<t>QIG;9683 
For JMT & A SOCIA TES 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. I 04 I 67W 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
Company has. in all material r~spects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reportmg were operating effectively as 
at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the institute of Chartered 
Accountants oflndia. 

Opinion 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due 
to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting to future penods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, 
or that the degree of compliance with the pohcies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and 
procedures that ( 1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and 
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the 
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthonzed acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect 
on the financial statements. 
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors For JMT & Associates 
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73.23 
28.08 
27.19 

0.07 

26.47 
0.65 14 

18 
15 

13 
31 
17 

(B) Current Uabllltles 
(a) Financial Llabllltles 

(i) Borrowings 
(ii) Lease liabilities 
(iii) Trade payables 

(a) total outstanding du~s of micro and small enterprises 
(b) total ouutanding dues of creditors otner than micro and small enterpnses 

(iv) Other financial liabilities 
(b) Other Current liabilities 
(c) Short term provisions 
(d) Current tax fiabltitres (nett 

Total Current Uabllltle.s 
Total llabllltles 

TOTAL EQUllY AND LIABILITIES 

0.89 

0.89 

9.75 

0.51 

10.26 

1772 
0.61 

O.Ql 
4.72 0.40 
1.74 2.08 
0.29 
0.04 0.83 

2513 3.31 
35 ~g l.31 
55.32 26.26 

13 
32 
14 
15 

(11) liabilities 

(Al Non-Current llabllltles 
(a} Financial Liaoihties 

(i) Borrowings 
(ii) Lease lrab1llt1es 
(iii) Other Financial liabilities 

(bl Long term provisions 
(cl Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 

Total Non·CUrrent Uabllltles 

BULi CHEMICALS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 311 2024 

It In Crom t In Ctores 
Notes As 31 As at Asat Parttcu!ars 

No. March 312024 March 31. 2023 lst Aerll 2022 
ASSETS 
(ll Non-Current Assets 

(al Property, Plant and Equipment 3 6.05 5.02 5.75 
(b) Right of Use Assets 3(a) Y.59 
(c) Capital work-in-progress 0.02 
(di Intangible A»ets 35.82 
(el Finantiill Assets 

(I) Investments 
(11) Loans 
(iii) Other Financial assets 1.67 0.68 

(el Deferred Tax Asset (Net) 16 1.23 
(f) Non current tax asset (Net) 6 0.09 
(g) Other non-current Assets 

Total Non Current Assets 18.65 5.02 42.25 
(11) Current Asseu 

(al Inventories 8.5: 0.18 7.35 
(bl Flnandal Assets 

(i) Trade Receivables 9 :4.50 L64 10.44 
(ii} Cash and Cash equ.valents 10 1.34 18.29 7.10 
(Ill) Bank balances other than (II) above 10(•1 0.26 
(iv) Loans 
(v) Other Financial assets 5.18 0.75 0.08 

(cl Other Current Assets §BB 0.38 6.01 
Total Current Assets 36.67 21.24 30.98 

TOTAL ASSETS 55.32 26.26 73.23 

EQUllY AND LIABILITIES 
(I) Equity 

(a) Equity Share Capital 11 46.93 46.93 46.93 
(bl Other Equity 12 ,21 001 ,23.98) (1.78) 

Total equity 19.9~ 22.95 45.15 
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Nikhil Jain 
Chief Financial Officer 

Chairman & Executive Director 
DIN- 00185487 

Place: Thane 
Date: 30 April, 2024 

Sanjay Pichholla 
Partner 
Membership No. 122651 

Dr.Harin Kanan! 
Executive Director 
DIN- 05136947 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Bull Chemicals India Private Limited 

For JMT & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
rlrm Registration No. 104167W 

Corporate information and material accounting policies 
Notes forming part of standalone financials statements 
Other notes to Accounts & the accompanying notes are an integral part of Standalone Financial Statements 
As per our report of even date attached 

(0.05) 

13.02) !16.29) 

33 
(0.64) (3.47) 
(0.64) (3.47) 

1 to 2 
1 to 41 

16{b) 
16{b) 

16{a) 
lG{a) 

21 
22 
23 
24 
7'i 
26 

41.31 82.03 
0.10 0.01 

41.41 82.04 

38.85 45.11 
(6.13) 2.92 
4.39 4.74 
1.97 
7.g.~ 37 06 
3.62 5.15 

45.63 94.99 

(4.22) (12.95) 

3.34 
(1.25) 

(2.97) (16.29) 

(O.Q7) 
0.02 

19 
20 

VI Other Comprehensive Income 
(A) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

- Remeasurement of defined benefit plans 
- Income tax relating to items that will not oe reclassified to profit or loss 

(Bl lt!!ms that will be reclassified to profit or loss 
- Change in fair value of debt instrument 
- Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 

Other Comprehensive Income for the year net of tax 

VII Total Comprehensive Income for the year ( V + VI ) 

VIII Earnings per equity share (face value t 10 each) 
- Basic (t) 
- Diluted (t) 

II EXPENSES 
Cost of materials consumed 
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock in trade 
Employee benefits expense 
Finance costs 
Depreciation and amortization expense 
Other expenses 

TOTAL EXPENSES 

Ill Profit before tax (I - II) 
IV Tax Expenses 

- Current Tax 
- Deferred Tax 

V Profit for the year (Ill - IV) 

TOTAL INCOME 

Revenue from Operations 
Other Income 

REVENUE 

For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Note 
No. 

Particulars 

l' in Crores) 
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024 

BULi CHEMICALS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 
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M. no. A71740 

Executive Director 
OIN· 05136947 

Chitf Financial Officer 
Place: Thane 
Oiite: 30 April, 2024 

?artner 
Membership No. 122651 

auu Chemicals India Private Umited 
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors For JMT & Associates 

Chanered Accountanu 
Firm Registration No. 

Notes forming part or st.1ndalonc financials statemcnu 
A\ per our repon of even date attached 

17.71 

March 31, 2024 March 31. 2023 

17.72 

Borrowings 
Balance at the begmning of the year 
Cash Flow 
Non Cash Q\anges 
Balance at the end of the Year 

Particulars 

2. The figures for the previous year have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to conform to current year's 
da.ssiffcaUon.. 
l. Cash comoriscs cash on hand, Current Accounu. and deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are shert-terr» balances (with an 

Arc:.nuntfng Sl.\ndard~) Ruh!:. 2015, ,n amended and the re:levant provisions of the Act. 

1. !he above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared uutJ~r the "Indirect Method .. as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind 
/tu· 7) on Statement of Cash Flows notified u/s 133 of companies Act. 2013 r-Act'"I read with Rule 4 of the Companies (Indian 

18.29 1.60 

0.00 
18.29 

0.00 
1.60 

7.10 18.29 

(16.69) 

7.10 
0.00 

18.29 

15.75 

11.20 

17.72 
(1.97) 

Cash on Hand 
Cash at Bank 

Closlna Cash and Cash Equtvalents 

Cash on Hand 
Cash at Bank 

Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Net increase I (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

C. Cuh Flow from Financing Act.Mtles 
Proceeds from issue of equity instruments of the Company 
Proceeds of borrowlngs 
Finance cost 

Net Cuh used In Financing acttvltles 

(0.51) (U.47) 

{0.511 (13.571 
0.10 

(lB.97) 11.71 

15.05 
3.34) 

(24.75) 

5.63 

7.16 
8.80 

(lB.971 

(6 091 
(5.50) 
4.32 

10.32 
0.53 

{0.34) 
[0.591 

(8.331 
(12.861 

18.21 0.57 

37.06 2.93 
1,97 

(0.10) 

(4.221 
Adruslmepts for· 
Depreciation and amortization expense 
Finance Cost 
Interest income 

Operatlng Profit before Wor.::lng Capltil ch11n"es 
Adjustments for : 
llncrease) I Decrease ,n inventories 
(Increase) I Decrease In trade receivables 
(Increase) I Decrease in current loaM and advances and other current 
financial assets 
{Increase) I Decrease in Other Cunen, Assets 
ncrease/(Oecrease) in Trade Payables 

,ncrene/(Oecrease} in Other Financial Non-Current Uab1lit1es 
lncrease/(Ot!i:rt!•sl!') in Other Non-Current Uabiliti@s 
lncreese/(Oecn'.!asc) in Other Current t=inanciiill Uab1lities 
lncrc.Jsc/(Drrrt>;,i-:r) in Other Current Uibilltfes 

Cinh generned from operations 
Income ux paid 

Net Cash from Opentlng actMtJH 

8. Cash Flow from Investing Actlvltie.s 
Purchnes of Property, Olant and Equipment 
Interest received 

Net Cash used In Investing activities 

A. Cash Flow from Qperatin1 Actlvitk!s 
(18.851 Net Profit before me 

For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 Puticulus 

euu CHEMICALS INOIA PRIVATE LIMITED 
Standalone Dish Flow St>tem•nt for theynr ended M•rth 31, 2024 
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Company Secretary 
M. no. A71740 

Chief Financial Officer 
Place: Thane 
Date: 30 April, 2024 

Dr.Harln Kanan! 
Executive Director 
DIN- 05136947 

Chairman & E•ecutive Director 
DIN- 00185487 

Partner 
Membership No. 122651 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Bull Chemicals India Private Limited 

For JMT & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. 104167W 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these standalone financial statements. 
As per our report of even date attached 

Fort evearen e ar 
Description Reserves and Surplus Items of other Total 

comprehensive Other 
Income Equity 

General Reserve Retained Rev•luatlon reserve Re- measurement of 
Earnings Gains (losses) on 

Defined Benefit Plan 
Balance as at April 1, 2022 -1.78 -1.78 
Profit for the year (22.20) -22.20 
Revaluation reserve on Fixed assets - - . 
Other Comprehensive Income - 
Total Comprehensive Income - (23.98) - - ·23.98 
Equity Dividends - 
Taxes µ•iu of earlier years - 
At March 31, 2023 -23.98 - - -23.98 

h d d M ch 31 2023 

Fort e vear en Mar 31 2024 
Description Reserves and Surplus Other comprehensive 

I•--- 
General Reserve Retained Revaluation reserve Re- measurement of Total 

Earnings Gains (losses) on Other 
Oeflned Benefit Plan Equity 

Balance as at April 1, 2023 - -23.98 -23.98 
Profit for the year . -2.97 ·2.97 
I ransfer to General Reserve . 
Revaluation reserve on Fixed assets . 
Other Comprehensive Income - -0.05 -0.05 
Total Comprehensive Income - ·26.95 -0.05 -27.00 
Equity Dividends I Dividend Distribution Tax - - 
At March 31, 2024 -26.95 -0.05 ·27.00 

BJ Other Equity 
h ded ch 

46.93 46.93 46.93 

46.93 46.93 46.93 Balance at the beginning of the year 
Changes in equity share capital during the year 
Balance at the end of the year 

A) Equity Share Capital As at 
lApril 2022 

As at March 
31,2023 

As at March 
31,2024 

1, in Crores) 

BuU Chemicals lndla Private Limited 
Statement of Changes In Equity for the year ended March 31 2024 
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(2) Basis of measurement 
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the 
following: 
- certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) that is 
measured at fair value; 
- defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value less present value of 
defined benefit obligation; 

All assets and liabilities have been classified as per the Company's normal operating 
cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on 
the nature of the products and the time taken between acquisition of assets for 
processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has 
ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of the classification 
of assets and liabilities into current and non-current. 

Current versus non-current classification 

The Company adopted Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to Ind AS 1) 
from 1 April 2023. Although the amendments did not result in any changes in the 
accounting policies themselves, they impacted the accounting policy information 
disclosed in the financial statements. The amendments require the disclosure of 
'material' rather than 'significant' accounting policies. The amendments also provide 
guidance on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting policies, 
assisting entities to provide useful, entity-specific accounting policy information that 
users need to understand other information in the financial statements 

The standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 
2024 were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of 
Directors on April 30, 2024. 

B. Basis of preparation and measurement 
(1) Basis of preparation 

The standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian 
Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant 
to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act') read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the 
Act. The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the years presented in the 
standalone financial statements. 

Buli Chemicals India Private Limited the company) incorporated on 21 May 2018 
is in the business of Organic and Speciality Chemicals. The ultimate holding 
company is Neogen Chemicals Limited. 

A. General Information 

Material accounting policies 

Note 1 : 



(1) Determination of the estimated useful lives 
Useful lives of property, plant and equipment are based on the life prescribed in 
Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. In cases, where the useful lives are different 
from that prescribed in Schedule II and in case of intangible assets, they are based on 
technical advice, taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of 
the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, 
anticipated technological changes, manufacturers' warranties and maintenance 
support. 

(2) Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations 
The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial 
assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary 
escalation, actuarial rates and life expectancy. The discount rate is determined by 
reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. 
The period to maturity of the underlying bonds correspond to the probable maturity of 
the post-employment benefit obligations. Due to complexities involved in the 
valuation and its long term nature, defined benefit obligation is sensitive to changes 
in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting period. 

(3) Recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of 
temporary differences between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and their 
respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is 
probable that future taxable income will be available against which the deductible 
temporary differences. 

(4) Recognition and measurement of other provisions 
The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment 
of the probability of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and 
circumstances known at the balance sheet date. The actual outflow of resources at a 
future date may therefore, vary from the amount included in other provisions. 

While preparing financial statements in conformity with Ind AS, the management has 
made certain estimates and assumptions that require subjective and complex 
judgments. These judgments affect the application of accounting policies and the 
reported amount of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, disclosure of contingent 
liabilities at the balance sheet date and the reported amount of income and expenses for 
the reporting period. Future events rarely develop exactly as forecasted and the best 
estimates require adjustments, as actual results may differ from these estimates under 
different assumptions or conditions. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed 
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively. 
Judgement, estimates and assumptions are required in particular for: 

C. Key estimates and assumptions 

These standalone financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the 
Company's functional currency. All amounts have been rounded off to the nearest lakh, 
unless otherwise indicated. 

(3) Functional and presentation currency 



When measuring the fair value of a financial asset or a financial liability, the Company 
uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are categorised into different 

The Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair 
values for, both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Company has an 
established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The 
management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation 
adjustments. If third party information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used 
to measure fair values, then the management assesses the evidence obtained from the 
third parties to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of Ind 
AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be 
classified. 

D. Measurement of fair values: 

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the standalone financial 
statements. 

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation because of past 
event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the 
obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. These are reviewed 
at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. 

(8) Provisions and contingent liabilities 

(7) Fair value of financial instruments 
Derivatives are carried at fair value. Derivatives includes foreign currency forward 
contracts. Fair value of foreign currency forward contracts are determined using the 
fair value reports provided by respective bankers. 

(6) Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease 
Ind AS 116 requires lessee to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period 
of a lease adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such 
option is reasonably certain. The Company makes an assessment on the expected 
lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably 
certain that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In 
evaluating the lease term, the Company considers factors such as any significant 
leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the 
termination of the lease and the importance of the underlying asset taking into 
account the location of the underlying asset and the availability of suitable 
alternatives. The lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease 
term reflects the current economic circumstances. After considering current and 
future economic conditions, the Company has concluded that no changes are 
required to lease period relating to the existing lease contracts. 

(5) Discounting of long-term financial assets I liabilities 
All financial assets I liabilities are required to be measured at fair value on initial 
recognition. In case of financial liabilities/assets which are required to subsequently 
be measured at amortised cost, interest is accrued using the effective interest 
method. 



(ii) Interest income 
For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is 
recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). which is the rate that discounts 
the estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of 
the financial instruments or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net 
carrying amount of the financial assets. Interest income is included in other 
income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Our customers have the contractual right to return goods only when 
authorized by the Company. 

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with 
a customer and in excess of billing is recognised as a Contract Asset . 
Revenue from the sale of goods are recognized when control of the goods has 
transferred to our customer and when there are no longer any unfulfilled 
obligations to the customer, This is generally when the goods are delivered to 
the customer depending on individual customer terms, which can be at the 
time of dispatch or delivery. This is considered the appropriate point where 
the performance obligations in our contracts are satisfied as the Company no 
longer have control over the inventory. 

E. Material accounting policies 
(1) Revenue and Other income: 

(i) Sale of goods 
Revenue from operations comprises of sales of goods after the deduction of 
discounts, goods and service tax and estimated returns. Discounts given by 
the Company includes trade discounts, volume rebates and other incentive 
given to the customers. Accumulated experience is used to estimate the 
provision for discounts. Revenue is only recognized to the extent that it is 
highly probable a significant reversal will not occur. 

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of 
the reporting period during which the change has occurred. 

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels 
of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in 
the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the 
entire measurement. 

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. - 
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the 
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). - Level 
3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data 
(unobservable inputs). 

levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as 
follows. 



(ii) Other long-term employee benefit obligations 
Liability toward Long-term Compensated Absences is provided for on the 
basis of an actuarial valuation, using the Projected Unit Credit Method, as at 
the date of the Balance Sheet. Actuarial gains I losses comprising of 
experience adjustments and the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions 
are immediately recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The 

(3) Employment Benefits 
(i) Short-term obligations 

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering 
services are classified as short-term employee benefits. Short-term 
employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability 
is recognized for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present 
legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service 
provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably. Short­ 
term benefits such as salaries, wages, short-term compensation absences, 
etc., are determined on an undiscounted basis and recognized in the period 
in which the employee renders the related service. 

Exchange differences are generally recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign 
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of transactions. Non­ 
monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency shall be 
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured. 

(2) Foreign currency: 
Transaction and balances 
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional 
currencies of the Company at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions or 
an average rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate at the date of the 
transaction. Foreign currency transactions are recorded on initial recognition in the 
functional currency, using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. At each 
balance sheet date, foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing 
exchange rate. Exchange differences that arise on settlement of monetary items or on 
reporting at each balance sheet date of the Company's monetary items at the closing 
rate are recognized as income and expenses in the period in which they arise. 

(iii) Government grant: 
Grants and subsidies from the government are recognised when there is 
reasonable assurance that (i) the company will comply with the condition 
attached to them and (ii) the grant /subsidy will be received. Government 
grants are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic 
basis over the years in which the Company recognises the related costs for 
which the grants are intended to compensate or when performance 
obligations are made. Where the grant relates to an asset, it is recognized as 
deferred income and credited to income in equal amounts over the expected 
useful life of the related asset. 



(4) Income-tax 
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates to a business 
combination, or items recognised directly in equity or in the OCI. 
(i) Current tax 

Current tax is the amount of tax payable (recoverable) in respect of the taxable 
profit I (tax loss) for the year determined in accordance with the provisions of 
the Income-Tax Act, 1961. Current income tax for current and prior periods is 
recognized at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax 
authorities, using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or 

(b) Defined contribution plans 
The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered 
provident funds as per local regulations. The Company has no further 
payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The 
contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the 
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are 
due. 

Gratuity : The Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit 
plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that 
employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that 
amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets. 
The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a 
qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the 
calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the recognised 
asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the 
form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future 
contributions to the plan. 
Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments 
and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the period in 
which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are 
included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in 
the balance sheet. 

(a) Defined benefit plans: The following post - employment benefit plans 
are covered under the defined benefit plans: 

(iii) Post-employment obligations 
The Company operates the following post-employment schemes: 
(a) defined benefit plans such as gratuity, and 
(b) defined contribution plans such as provident fund. 

obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity 
does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve 
months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is 
expected to occur. 



(5) Inventories 
Inventories are carried in the balance sheet as follows: 
(a) Raw materials, Packing materials, Stock in Trade and Stores & Spares: At lower of 
cost, on weighted average basis and net realisable value 

b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes 
levied by the same taxation authority on the same taxable entity. 

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would 
follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, 
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred 
tax assets and liabilities are offset only if: 
a) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against 
current tax liabilities; and 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are 
expected to apply in the year when the asset is realized or the liability is 
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences to 
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against 
which they can be used. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting 
date and are reduced to the extentthat it is no longer probable that the related 
tax benefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed when the probability 
of future taxable profits improves. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are 
reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent that it has 
become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which 
they can be used. 

(ii) Deferred tax 
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and 
the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for: 
- temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a 
transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither 
accounting nor taxable profit or loss; 
- temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries and associates 
to the extent that the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of 
the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the 
foreseeable future; and 
-taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill 

substantively enacted at the reporting date. Current tax assets and liabilities 
are offset only if, the Company: 
a) has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and 
b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the 
liability simultaneously. 



Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future 
economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company 

(II) Subsequent expenditure 

(6) Property, plant and equipment (including Capital work in progress) 
(I) Recognition and measurement 

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses, if any. 
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises: 
a) its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase 
taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates. 
b) any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and 
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended 
by management. 
c) the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and 
restoring the site on which it is located, the obligation for which an entity 
incurs either when the item is acquired or as a consequence of having used 
the item during a particular period for purposes other than to produce 
inventories during that period. 
d) Items of property, plant and equipment (including capital-work-in progress) 
are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less 
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses Income 
and expenses related to the incidental operations, not necessary to bring the 
item to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating 
in the manner intended by management, are recognised in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. 
If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different 
useful lives, then they are accounted and depreciated for as separate items 
(major components) of property, plant and equipment. 
Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

(b) Work-in-progress I project in progress-: At lower of cost of materials, plus 
appropriate manufacturing overheads and net realizable value. 
c) Finished Goods: At lower of cost of materials, plus appropriate manfacturing 
overheads and net realizable value, Net realizable value is the estimated selling price 
in the ordinary course of business less estimated cost of completion and selling 
expenses necessary to make the sale.The cost of inventories have been computed to 
include all cost of purchases, cost of conversion and other related costs incurred in 
bringing the inventories to the present location and condition. Slow and non-moving 
material, obsolescence, defective inventories are duly provided for and valued at net 
realizable value. Goods and materials in transit are valued at actual cost incurred 
upto the date of balance sheet. Materials and supplies held for use in the production 
of inventories are not written down if the finished products in which they will be used 
are expected to be sold at or above cost. 



Depreciation methods, useful Lives and residual values are reviewed at each 
reporting date and adjusted if appropriate. 
Amortisation 
Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their 
estimated residual values using the straight-line method over their estimated 
useful lives, and is generally recognised in profit or loss. The intangible assets 
are amortised over the estimated useful lives as given below: - Computer 
software 3-5 years 

(8) Investments: 
The investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are carried in these 
financial statements at historical 'cost', except when the investment or a portion 
thereof, is classified as held for sale, in which case it is accounted for as Non­ 
current assets held for sale and discontinued operations. Where the carrying 
amount of an investment is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is 

(7) Intangible assets: 
(I) Computer software 

Recognition and measurement 
Intangible assets are recognized when it is probable that the future economic 
benefits that are attributable to the assets will flow to the Company and the 
cost of the asset can be measured reliably. 
Intangible assets viz. Computer software, which are acquired by the Company 
and have finite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. 

Assets costing Less than Rs 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of 
purchase/acquisition. Depreciation methods, useful Lives and residual 
values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate. An 
asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable 
amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated 
recoverable amount Gains and losses on disposals are determined by 
comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in profit or 
loss within other gains/(losses). 

(Ill) Depreciation/ Amortizations 
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-Line method to allocate their 
cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful Lives specified in 
schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 except for the following: 
(a) Building-30 years 
(b) Plant and Machinery- 20 years 
(c) M.S. Structure & FRP Gratings- 20 years 
(d) Effluent Treatment Plant- 20 years 
(e) Safety Equipment's- 20 years 
(fl Quality Control Instruments & R & D Equipment's- 10 years 
(g) Office equipment's- 5 years 
(h) IT Equipment's- 3 years 
(i) Furniture and fixtures- 1 O years 
(j) Vehicles- 8 years 



(12) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets 
Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or 
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a 
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expenses 
relating to a provision is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss net of any 
reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are 
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows specific to the liability. 
The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. A provision for 

(11) Financial Instruments 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one 
entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial 
instruments also include derivative contracts such as foreign currency foreign 
exchange forward contracts. Financial instruments also covers contracts to buy 
or sell a non-financial item that can be settled net in cash or another financial 
instrument, or by exchanging financial instruments, as if the contracts were 
financial instruments, with the exception of contracts that were entered into and 
continue to be held for the purpose of the receipt or delivery of a non-financial 
item in accordance with the entity's expected purchase, sale or usage 
requirements. Derivatives are currently recognized at fair value on the date on 
which the derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured 
to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. 

(10) Segment Reporting 
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal 
reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM") of the 
Company. The CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing 
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Board of 
directors. The Company has identified only one segment as reporting segment 
based on the information reviewed by CODM. 

(9) Borrowing costs: 
General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised 
during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its 
intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a 
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. Other 
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing 
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with 
the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange difference to the 
extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs. 

written down immediately to its recoverable amount and the difference is 
transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss. On disposal of investment, the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is charged 
or credited to P & L. 



At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of­ 
use asset ("ROU") and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements 
in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less 
(short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value 
leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on 
a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Certain lease arrangements 
includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease 
term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is 
reasonably certain that they will be exercised. The right-of-use assets are initially 
recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability 
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of 
the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are 
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment 
losses. Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a 
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the 
underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever 
events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not 
be recoverable. The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the 
present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted 
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the 
incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease 

(13) Leases 
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the 
use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. 
Company as a lessee The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of 
leases for land. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at 
inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys 
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange 
for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the 
use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract 
involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the 
economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) 
the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. 

onerous contracts is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected 
cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the 
contract. Before a provision is established, the Company recognises any 
impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract. A disclosure for a 
contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present 
obligation that may, but will probably not, require an outflow of resources. When 
there is a possible obligation of a present obligation in respect of which the 
likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision disclosure is made. A 
contingent asset is not recognised but disclosed in the financial statements 
where an inflow of economic benefit is probable. Commitments includes the 
amount of purchase order (net of advance) issued to parties for completion of 
assets. Provisions, contingent assets, contingent liabilities and commitments are 
reviewed at each balance sheet date. 



II. Diluted earnings per share 
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination 
of basic earnings per share to take into account: 
- the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs 
associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and 
- the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would 
have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential 
equity shares. 

(16) Earnings per share 
I. Basic earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing: 
- the profit attributable to owners of the Company 
- by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the 
financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares issued during 
the year and excluding treasury shares. 

(15) Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on 
hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, 
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

(14) Impairment of non-financial assets 
Intangible assets that have infinite useful life are not subjected to amortization 
and are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. The carrying values of other 
assets/cash generating units at each balance sheet date are reviewed for 
impairment if any indication of impairment exists. If the carrying amount of the 
assets exceed the estimated recoverable amount, an impairment is recognised 
for such excess amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling 
price and their value in use. Value in use is arrived at by discounting the future 
cash flows to their present value based on an appropriate discount factor that 
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk 
specific to the asset. When there is indication that an impairment loss recognised 
for an asset (other than a revalued asset) in earlier accounting periods which no 
longer exists or may have decreased, such reversal of impairment loss is 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, to the extent the amount was 
previously charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. In case of revalued assets, 
such reversal is not recognised. 

liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of 
use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an 
extension or a termination option. Lease liability and ROU asset have been 
separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been 
classified as financing cash flows. 



F. Recent Pronouncements 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to 

the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as 

issued from time to time. On March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new 

standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company. 



Particulars Office Buildings Total 

Gross Block: 

As at April 1, 2023 - - 
Additions during the year 11.78 11.78 
Disposals during the year - 
As at March 31, 2024 11.78 11.78 

Accumulated De12reclatlon: 
As at April 1, 2023 - - 
Depreciation for the year 2.19 2.19 
On disposals during the year - - 
As at March 31, 2024 2.19 2.19 

Net Book Value: 
As at March 31, 2023 - - 

As at March 31, 2024 9.59 9.59 

Note : 3(a) Right of Use Assets 

Particulars Leasehold Factory Plant & Office 
I .T Equipments Furniture & 

Total Improvements buildings Machineries Equipments Fixtures 
Gross Block: 

As at April 1, 2022 0.88 - 8.12 0.06 0.25 0.04 9.35 
Additions during the year - - 0.47 - 0.03 - 0.50 
Disposals/Adjustments during the year -0.88 - - - - -0.88 
As at March 31, 2023 - - 8.59 0.06 0.28 0.04 8.97 

As at April 1, 2023 - - 8.59 0.06 0.28 0.04 8.97 
Additions during the year - 0.02 1.65 0.01 0.08 - 1.76 
Disposals during the year - - - - - 
As at March 31, 2024 - 0.02 10.24 0.07 0.36 0.04 10.73 

Accumulated De12reclatlon: 
As at April 1, 2022 0.58 - 2.75 0.03 0.20 O.Dl 3.57 
Depreciation for the year 0.30 - 0.88 0.01 0.04 0.02 1.25 
On disposals during the year -0.88 - - - - - -0.88 
As at March 31, 2023 - - 3.63 0.04 0.24 0.03 3.94 

As at April 1, 2023 - - 3.63 0.04 0.24 0.03 3.94 
Depreciation for the year - 0.00 0.71 0.01 0.03 0.00 0.74 
On disposals during the year - - 
As at March 31, 2024 - 0.00 4.34 0.04 0.27 0.03 4.68 

Net Book Value: 
As at March 31, 2023 - - 4.96 0.02 0.04 0.01 5.02 
As at March 31, 2024 - 0.02 5.90 0.02 0.09 0.01 6.05 

(~ In Crores) 
Note : 3 Property, Plant and Equipment 

Buli Chemicals India Private Limited 
Accompanying notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 



b) There are no cost overrun or Timeline delayed in any project pertaining to Financial Year 23-24 and Financial Year 22-23 

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 

Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years Total Less than 1 year 1-2 years Total 

Project in Progress 0.02 0.02 - - - 

a) Capital work in progress {CWIP) Ageing Schedule 

Particulars Amount 

As at April 1, 2022 - 
Additions during the year - 
Capitalised during the year - 
As at March 31, 2023 - 

As at April 1, 2023 - 
Additions during the year 0.02 
Capitalised during the year - 
As at March 31, 2024 0.02 

Note : 4 Capital Work in Progress 

, in Crores 

Buli Chemicals India Private Limited 

Accompanying notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 



1.64 1.64 Total current trade receivables 

1.64 1.64 
Undisputed tnde receiv1blH 
- considered good 
- which have significant increase In risk 
- credit impaired 
Dlsputed trade receivables 
- ccnsrdered good 
- which have slgruftcant increase 1n risk 
-credit impatred 
Total 
Less: Loss Allowanct" 

Not Due Total 
~Pa,,_rt,,lc,,ue,lae,rse._ -4 ~-------'°""'rts"'t"'an"'d"ln=•sl,cor'-'l-"o"'llo,,w=lnB_P.eriods from due d1te of oavment 

less than 6 months 6 months- 1 yeu 1-2 years more th.in 2 yHn 

Trade Receivable Ageln1 schedule as on 31.st March, 2023 

14.50 0.16 1.48 12.86 Total current trade recelvables 

- which have significant increase in risk 
- credit impaired 
Disputed trade recelvibles 
- considered good 

- which have s1gn1f1cant increase m nsk 
-credit impaired 
Total 
Less: Loss Allowancl!' 

14.SO 0.16 l.48 12.86 · considered good 

more than 2 years 1-2ynrs 6 months - 1 year less than 6 monthJ 

Undisputed trade receivables 

ouuundlrw forfollo~ o.rlods from due date of ... .__ent 
Total Hot Due 

10.44 1.6-1 14.SO Total 

1044 I 64 14.SO 
Unsecured 
(i) Comide,ed good ' 
(i1)Tude recewabte which have s1gnifw::ant mer ease In risk. 

fi1i)Trade receivable~ credit impo111ed 
Less: Allowance for expected aedit loss 

"'" Much 31, 2023 
..... 

Muc.h 31. 2024 
As•t 

lAprll 2022 

•Hypotht:c1att:d with banks for working capital tacrhtres 

1) .Ageln1 of Trade Recelv1ble 
T111de Receivable Ageln1 schedule as on 31st March, 2024 

P1rtlculirs 
Note: 9. T~d• ReceMbles 

•Hypothec•ated with banks for working capnat facilities 

1,1ncrorul 

Note: S. Othrtr Flnandal Al.Sets 
Partkulln Curren, Non current 

Asot Asot ..... ..... "'" ... .. 
Mlrch 31, 2024 March 31. 2023 1 Ap<il 2022 March 31, 2024 Much 31, 2023 1Aprll2022 

(Unsecured, considered aood unle» stoled otherwbe) 

Contr.tct Aueh S.18 
Secun1y eepcsns a.JS 0.08 1.67 068 
Total 5.18 0.75 0.08 1.67 0.68 

Note: 6. Non CIMTent Tax As.sets (Net) 

Plrtkulars ..... Ant Asot 
March 31., 2024 March 31, 20H 1Aprll2022 

Advance T.u (Net of Prov~sion) 0.09 
Total 0.09 . 

Note : 7. Other As.sets 
Putleu\an Current Non current ..... ... .. ... .. Alal Asal Asal 

Much31 2024 Morch 31, 2023 1Aot112022 Marth 31, 2024 M.uch 31, 2023 1 Anrll 2022 
(Unsecured, CoruJdered Good unless otherwise stated) 

Balance with Gove,nment autho11ties 0.4S 0.19 S.61 
Prepaid h:penses 0.58 0.09 0.40 
Otber Rf'ceivilblP\ 'i.8S 

I Total 6.88 0.38 6.01 

Note: 8. lnventorlu 
P1rtlculus ..... "'" Asal 

March 31., 2024 March 31, 2023 lAprll 2022 
(Valued at lower of the cost and net realisable value) . Raw materials .2.14 0 18 4" Packing materials OOl 001 . Flnlshed goods 0.00 l 9l . Work·in·progreH 6" Stores and spares Ol> 

Tot1I 8.51 0.18 7.35 

BUU OiEt,41CALS INOIA PRIVATE LIMITED 
Ac:companylrc notu to the tlnanclal statements for the year ended Mlrch31, 2024 



The Descr1pUon of the nature •nd purpose of reserve within equity: 
Retained Earnlnp: Retained earnings are the profits that the company has earned till date, leis any transfers to general reserve, rhvrdends paid to shareholders. 

Note : 12. Other Eoultv 
P1rtk:ulus As It As 11 Asal 

March 31, 2024 M1n:h 31, 2023 1 APnl 2022 

Retained earnings 121001 123.98} u /81 
'rete! Other faultv 127.001 123.981 11.781 

As al Uurh 31. 2024 
Promoter Name No of Shares at the Changes durtnc the Year No. of Share at the "of Totll Shire " Chan1e durfn& the 

beclnnln1 of Year end of Year Year 

Necgen Chemicals tunned 4,69,25 994 100.006' 100% 
Mr. Handas Kanani (u a nominee of Neogen Chem cals l.Jm1ted) I 0.00% 
Dr. Hann H Kanan1 (as a nominee or Neogen Chemicals L1m1ted) l 0.00% 0% 
Mrs. Beena Kanan! {as a nominee of Neogcn Chemicals Limited ) 1 0.00% 0% 
Mr. o\nurag Surana las a nominee of Neogen Chemicals limited) I 0.00% 0% 
Mr. SinJay Mehta (as a nominee of Neogen Chemicals 1Jm1ted ) 1 0.00% 0% 
Mr. H1tesh Reshamwala (as a nominee of Neogen Chemicals urmted I I 0.00% 0% 

. 4 6926000 100.00% 100.~ 

• One Share ts held by Livent Corporation as nommee shareholder for lJvent USA Corp U.S.A 
• l share each held by 6 1nd1vidu11 shareholders as a nominee shareholder on behalf of Neogen Chemicals Limited as mentioned m note 1 l(d) . 

(d) Detalb of shires held by promoter 11 the end of the yur 

N1me of the Sh1reholder .... II As at As at As at 
Marth 31, 2024 March 31, 2024 M1rch 31, 2023 Much 31, 2023 

fqultyshues No. of Shares " No. of Shares " 
Neogen Chem1uls l1m1ted 4,69,25,994 100.00% 
Livent USA Corp, U.S.A.(•)· Holding Company ·formerly known as FMC Lithium USA Corp} 0.00% 4,69,15,999 9999% 

(c) Details of shareholders holdln1 more than S" shires In the Comp1ny •re set out below 

(b) RlghU, Preferences & Restr1ctlon of uch class of shares 
The Company has one class of Equity shares having a par 'value of Rs.10 per share. Each Share holder is ehgrble for one vote per share held. All Equity Shareholders are eligible to receive dividends 1n proportion to their 
shareholdings. The dividends proposed by the Board or Directors are subject to the approval of the Shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of hqu1dat•on, the Equity Shareholders are e!1g1ble to 
rec.ewe the rt"ma1n1ng assets of the Company, after d1uribut1on of 111 preferential amounts, in proportion to their share holding 

Note 11 t,, Reondll1Uon of number of shares outst.ndln• at end of the ve,r: 
Putkulars As at March 31 2024 As It M1n:h 31 2023 As It 1 Aor112022 

No of Shares , In Crores No of Shares ,1n Crores No of Shares tin Oores 

Equ,tv Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 4,69,26,000 46.93 4,69,26,000 46 93 4,69,26,000 46.93 
Equity Shares issued dunng the year• 
Equity Shires outst1ndln111 the end of the ye1r 4,69,26,000 46.93 4,69,26,000 46.93 4,69,26,000 46.93 

Note : 11. Eoultv Shore C.oltol 
Particulars As at Morch 31, 2024 As at Mirth 31, 2023 As at 1 Ap~l 20U 

No of Shares ,1nerores No of Shores , In Crores No of Shares t In Crores 

Authorised C.plt1I 
Equity Shares of Rs 10/· each 5,00.26000 5003 5.00 26.000 S0.03 5,00.26 000 5003 

At March 31, 2023 5,00,26,000 S0.03 S,00,26,000 50.03 S,00,26,000 50.03 

Issued, SUbscttbed and Fully Paid up 
Equity Shares of Rs 10/· each 4,69,26,000 46.93 4,69,26,000 4693 4.69,26,000 46.93 

At March 31, 2024 4,69,26,000 46.93 4,69,26,000 46.93 4,69,26,000 46.93 

Note : 10la1 Bank b1l1n<e other than ush and cash ..,ulvalents 
Partlculm ,.. at As II As II 

March 31 2024 March 31 2023 1 ADr112022 

Fixed deposit with bank 0.26 

Total 0.26 

ote: 1 In :au v1 ents 
P1rtlcul1rs ,.. at ,.. at Aul 

March 31, 20H March 31, 2023 1 APr112022 

(1) Balances with banks : 
tn current accounts 134 0.00 7.09 

(11) Ushon hand 18.29 001 

Total 1.34 18.29 7.10 

N OC.Sh dcashE I I 
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0.2Q 

Tobi 

Statulnry dues ~yahle 

.... , .. 

0.29 

Note: 18. Other OJrrent Uabllltles 

Micro and small enterpnses a, rlPfmr-d under the Micro, Small and Medium [nterpmes Development Act, 2006 (MSMrU Act) have heen rdenuned hy the Cornp;iny nn the h;i,\1\ of the mformanon avadable wnh the Cnmr,;i,ny 
and the auditors have relied on the same. 

Particulars 

0.01 

0.01 

(f) Further Interest 1ern:,imng due and pavable even m the succeeding years, unnl such date when tbe mlerest dues as above are actu,llv paid lo the micro and 
small entemnses 

(e) Interest accrued and remammg unpaid as at the vear end 

(d) Interest due and Pw'Vilhte for the penod of delay in making payment (wh1c.h have been paid but beyond the aprnrnted day d(mng the ye;i,,J but without 
addmg the interest spedfred under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterpmes Development Act. 20C>6. 

{b) Interest due thereon as at the year end 

(c) roterest paid by com~ny in terms of Se-ct1onl6 of (the MSM[DA 2CX>6) 

(a) Principal amount rcmammg unpaid as at the year end 

.... . ,,, ··- 

0.40 

0.40 
Disclosure under MSME Act, 2006 · 

0.38 Tot>I 
iii Oisouted dues· Othen 
ml Oan111erl dues· MSMf 

0.38 
'l<lMSM[ 

less thin 1 vear 1-2 --"'rs 2-3 vears NotOue 

0.02 IW)Olhers 

Particulars 
Total 

Outstandlna: for followln"'! oerk)ds from due date of ............. nt 

0.02 

Tr1de Pavable.s Aaelna schedule as on 31st March 2023 

Partk:ulars Outstandlns for followlni periods from due date of payment 
Not Due less than 1 vear 1-2uears 2-3vears Tot>I 

',lMSME 0.01 0.01 
ul Otbers 4.70 001 0.01 4.72 
iii\ Drsouted dues MSME 
ul Drsouted dues- Others 

Tot>I 4.71 0.01 o.or 4.73 

.Aa•lns ofTmle P1V1bl• 

Tr1de Payables Aaelns schedule as on 31st March 2024 

Jr;i,de payables are ncn-mterest hearing and are norm;i,lty \Pitied on O In 170 cfay, terms . 

Note: 17. Tride Pavables 
Puticulars As •• As •• Asat 

Man:h 31, 2024 Mon:h 31, 2023 lAprll 2022 
Total outstandmg dues of micro and sm.111 enterpmes 0.01 
Total outstanding dues of credncrs other than micro and small enterprises 4.72 0.dO 26.47 
Totll 4.73 0.40 26.47 

Note: 16. Deferred Tax U1blll1ies/1Assetl INet' 
Particulars .... .. .. .. .. 

March 3L 2024 March 31, 2023 lAprt 2022 
Deterred Tax Uab1lities/(Asset) (Nel) -1.23 
Tot>I -1.23 

Partkulars O.urent Non rurnnt .... .... .. .. .... .. .. Aut Maret, 31, 202-4- Man::h 31. 2023 I Apr112022 Mar'Ch31. 2024 March 31. 2023 lAprt 2022 

Provtsk>n for Employee Benefits 
Provision for gr.1lu1ty 0.03 047 0.06 0.25 O.S] Provision for leave encasbmeru 0.01 0.36 0.01 026 0.37 

Tot>I 0.04 0.83 0.07 0.51 0.89 

Note : 15. Provisions 

Note: 14. Other flnonclal U1bllltles 
Partkulars current Non current ...... Asal Asat As •• As II Asal 

Man:h 31, 2024 M1n:h 31, 2023 1 AP<ll 2022 Man:h 31, 2024 Man:h 31, 2023 lAprll 2022 
rmployt't' benefu f}Ayahle D lR 
Security deposits 0.89 
Other Payables 061 '08 0.6~ 
Tot>I 1.74 2.08 0.65 

.. .. 
March 31.. 2023 

Non current .. .. 
Man::h 3L 2024 

·secured by way of charge on current asset (Inventories and Trade receivables) 
17.72 

r.n 
unsecured loans 

loan I rom Related parties 

.... 
Maret, 31.. 2024 

Particulars .. .. 
Man::h31. 2023 

10.00 

Secured loaru 
Workinc Caµita! Demand Lcau Frnm Bank 

Note : 13. Borrowlnos 

'In CtofH 
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Note : 25. Depredation and amortization exoense 
Pirtk:ulars For the ve•r Ended For the yeu Ended 

Man:h 31,. 2024 March 31, 2023 
Depreciation of tangible assets 2.93 

37.061 Amortisation of intangible assets 

Total 2.93 37.06 

Particulars fortheytarEnded Forth• year Endtd 
M1rchl1., 2024 M1rch3L 2023 

Interest expenses on borrowings l.06 
Interest on leases 0.82 
Other finance cost and bank charges 0.09 
Total 1.97 

Note · 24 Anance costs 

Note : 23. Employee beneflts ~mense 
Particulars For UM V111t Ended For the ','Hr Ended 

March 31, 202.C March 31., 2023 
Salaries, wages and bonus 

4.07 3.62 Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 29) 0.22 l.03 Staff welfare 
0.10 0.09 

Total 
4.39 4.74 

o e: 111&_es n nven o es o n .......... S WO n-proareM an ,to n IA e 
Partkulari for the ye1r Ended Forthey,urEnded 

March 3~ 2024 M1rch l1 2023 
Opening Inventory 

Finished Goods 
2.92 Work-In-Progress 

2.92 
Closing Inventory 

Finished Goods 
0.00 Work-In-Progress 
6.13 
6.13 Chances In Inventories: 

Flnl,hed Goods 
f0.00) 2.92 - Wortc-ln·Pro....., 
16.131 Total 
(6.13 2.92 

ck I t rt fft !shed d I I N t 22 Ch 

Partlculari 
For the year Ended For the year Ended 

March 31 2024 March 31 2023 
Opening stock 

0.18 4.43 Purchases 
40.81 40.86 
40.99 45.29 Less: Closing stock 

2.14 0.18 
Cost of Raw Materlal Consumed 38.85 45.11 

Note · 21 Cort of moter1ab consumed 

Portlculm 
For the yeu Ended For the yeu Ended 
Much 31 2024 Much 31 2023 1) Other Income 

Interest from banks on Fi,ced Oeposns 
0.00 Interest income-others 
0.10 O.oJ 

ToUII Other Income 
0.10 0.01 

Note · 20 Other Income 

(!I c n rores Note : 19. Revenue from Oomtions 
Partk:ul1rs For the year Ended For the year Ended 

March 31 2024 March 31 2023 
Sale of Product, 
Sale of products compmes Manufactured goods of Chemicals 36.11 81.70 
Other Operating Revenue 

S.20 0.33 
Total 

41.31 82.03 

BUU CHEMICALS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 
Accomponylns note, to the flnanci•I statements for the yeu ended March 31, 2024 



RIUo Numentor Denominator As ,t Much 31, 202, Al ,t Mirth 31, 2023 "Verilnoe Re.son for v,r1,nce 

•I Current ratio (rn times) Total current Asset total Current 1.46 6.42 -77% Current ratio has dechned 
habrlittes to due to borrowing taken 

during the year for working 
capital 

b) Debt Equity Ratio (in times) Total Borrowing Total Equity 0.89 0% FY 23 Nil borrowing 

c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio (in times) PAT+ Principal 0.98 oo, FY 23 Nil borrowing 
Depredation & repayment resulted ml mterest outflow 
Amortisation + of debt -t 

Interest Interest 
payments 

d) Return on Equity Ratio(,o) PAT Average shareholder -14% -48% -71% On account of losses 
eauitv reduced from last year 

e) Inventory Turnover (times) Sale of Products Average Inventory 9.51 21.80 ·56% Due to increase in average 
inventory 

f} Trade Receivable Turnover (no of days) Sale of Products Average Trade 4.A/ 13.52 ·6/% Due to increase m average 
Receivable receivables 

B) Trade Payable Turnover Ratio (in Times) Net purchase Average Trade 15.92 3.04 423% Due to decrease in 
Payables average payables 

h) Net Capital Turnover Ratio (m Time) Net sales Working capital 3.58 4.57 ·22% Due to decrease in 
working capital 

I) Net Profit Margin% Net profit for the Revenue from -7% -20% -64% On account of losses 
year Operation reduced from last year 

h) Return on Capital Employed !J-o EBIT Net Worth+ Total -6% -56% -89% On account of losses 
borrowmg+Deferred reduced from last year 
tax liability(Asset) 

Note: 27. Key Ratio 

Also refer note 39 . Detail of corporate social responsibrhtv (CSR) expenditure 

Corporate Social Re~ons1b1htv disclosure under Section 135 of the Co~crn1es Act, 2013 
Plrtlcul1rs FortheyeuEnded For the veu Ended 

Much 31, 2024 Much 31, 2023 
Gross Amount required to be spent by the company durmg the year 0.13 
Amount spent dunng the year on 

Promotion of safety. women empowerment and educatton 0.14 

Shortfall/ {Excess) of soendln• 10.01\ 

Payment to Auditors {exclusive of Goods and Services Tax) 
P•rtlculm FortheyurEnded fCW'theyeerEnded 

Much 31. 2024 Much 31. 2023 

As Auditors 
Audit fees 

0.20 0.14 Tax audit fees 
0.04 0.02 Reimbursement of expenses 

Total 
0.24 0.16 

Note: er expenses 
Partlcul1rs For the ye,r Ended fo, the y,nr Ended 

Much 31. 2024 Much 31, 2023 
Power and Fuel 

0.55 0.37 Consumption of stores and spares 
0.13 

Repairs and maintenance 
Plant and machinery 

0.05 0.30 Buildings 
0.01 

Others 
0.06 Insurance 
0.15 0.18 Rent 
O.D7 1.08 Rates and Taxes 
0.00 0.01 Contract Labour charges 
0.37 2.52 legal and professional fees 
0.74 0.20 Freight and forwarding charges 
0.37 0.01 Quality Control Expenses 
0.01 

Other Produmon Expenses 
0 15 Travellmg and conveyance 
0.04 0.00 Corporate Social Responsrbihtv (Refer note 40) 
0.14 0.01 Payment to Auditors 
0.24 0.16 Service and Housekeeping Charges 

0.21 Advertisement, Selling and Drstrlbutrcn Expenses 
0.08 Miscellaneous expenses 
0.46 0.09 

Total 
3.62 5.15 

26 0th 
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~ lit Mlf'Ch 31, 2024 Partlculars As lit March 31, 2023 

Relurn on plan au~ts 

lmerest on ~an assets 

Actual return on ol,n u.sets 

Actwl rett.m on olan assets for the YHr 

Exoe"'9s rea,JU'llzed., other a,moreherutve lntame 
PartKulilrs Al .t Mwdl 31, 2024 As lit M..-dl Jl, 2023 

Actuaual changes a,1smg from chane~ 1n demoeraph1c assumptions 
Actuarial changes ar1smg from chang~ 10 financial assumptions (0.08) 

Actuaual changes a11smg from changes m expeueoce vanence 0.01 
Return on plan assets. excluding amount recognized m net mterest expense NA 

Total &nenses receenlsed dur1na: the vear {0.071 - 
Net Assets/ lU,bllltvl 
Plrtlcu•rs Gratultv & LHW £ncashment 

As 11t Mwdl 31, 2024 As at Mlf'Ctl 31, 202l 

Closing Present value of the defmed benefit obhgauon O.Sl 0.84 

llosmg t-a1r value of plan Anets 

Net Assets I (U.bllltvl ,-•••ed In the Bolonct Sheet O.Sl 0.84 

Net ernnk>- beneflu u:rwnse reco1mlzed In the emok>vee cost 
hrtkulor, Gratultv 

As.CMll'Chlt,2024 As at Man::h 31, 2023 

Current ServlfP rmt 0.04 0.0H 
Interest Cost on def med benefit obhgation 0,03 0.00 
Net value of remeasurements on the cbhganon and plan assets 

Total En>enses r--nl.sed dur1n.a thevear 0,07 0.08 

PartKulilr1 
Al .t Mwdt 11, 202' As lit M.n:h JI, 2023 

In Income Statement 
In Other Comp1 ehenvve Inc ome (007) 0.00 

Total ExDaues r___,nlsed dur1na the vear -0.07 0.00 

Chanaes ri Filir value of Plan As.sets- Gntultv Benefit 
Partlcu\ir1 As llt Mwdl 31, 202,t As at MMth 31, 20Z3 

I) Fa11 value of pl4n assets as at April l 
2) lxpected return on plan assets 
3) ContributK>ns made 
4) Benefits p .. 1d ~, lntefest income 
6) Ac1uarial gain/ (Io,;,;) on plan as,;et,; 
7) fair value of plan assets as at Ma,ch 31 

hrtkullr, r.- , .. - 
As It Mwdl 31, 2024 As It Mwch JI, 2023 

I) Opemng present value of defined benefit obbgaucn 0.84 0.96 
I) Current Service Cost 0.04 008 
3) Interest Cost 0.03 000 
4) Benet.ls paid O.ID O.ID 
S) Actuarial (Gain)/ loss on cbhgancn (0.07) 0.00 
6) Net u ansfer 111 I (oul) (1ndud1ng the effecl of ,my bunness coml,111c1t1011s I dtvestvres} -0 36 000 
7) Closing present value of defined benefit obtigauon 0.18 084 

(b) Defined Benefit Plans 
compensated Absences 

Thf Comp .. nv h;n also provided lorlft term compenuted .tblences whtd1 .~ ouht;mdmR. 

lhe tollo\'vmg tables summame the components of net benefit expense recognised m the statement of profit and loss and the funded states and amounts recognised m the balance sheet lor gratuity and 
leave enchehshment plan: 

Chanaes In present value of the defined beneftt obltptJon 

Pi1rtlcu\ir1 AslllMW'dl31,202-t As It M..-dt 31, 2023 

Beneftts (ContTtbutlon to) 

Pro\ldent Fund 012 0 14 
Supcrilnnuahon Fund 

0.22 0.1' 

Note : 29. E11'4)1oyn Beneftts 

(•I O.ffne<I Contrl><rtlon plons 

there ,ue no di'utiJt pottnl~l shares and accordingly, Bas c tarntngs per sh.>re and O,luted earn ne per sh.l,e are sJme 

.3 47 

.347 
-06' 
-0.6'1 

Profit after tax for ulcu•allon of bu c and d.lutcd EPS 
Weighted average number of equ11v sl~res (face value eer share Rs. S) (Refer Nott lS) 
in cakulanng OOSIC £PS and ddut~d EPS. 

Ju« MIIUI 31, 2023 Ju 8t Man::h U, 2024 hrtkulaD 

·1629 

4,69,26,000 

·297 

•. 69,26,000 

8.UIC e;11m,ngs per ihare 
O,luted earmnus Dfr shillrt 

Note : 28. Umlnas Per Shue 
BillSIC Earnings Pf' stw1e (EPS) amouna are calculated by dMdmg the crcm for the ve,, aunburab'e to eQu1ly holders of the parem bv the 'l,.'t1i;hted average number of equity shctres outst .. nd1ng du1111g the ve,, Diluted 
[P\ amounts .111e ulrnlated by drvld1ng !he prnf11 all11hut;1hlf' to f'qu,ty holden by t~ ¥.l'1ghtrd average numhn of eqrnty -.harrs outstanding dunng the ye.lr r,tu, tht- weighltd A~l"'rAge numhfor nf equity ih;ut"\ I hat v.•ou!d 
be 11sued on con,en on of .111 the d1lutrve potenlwl eQU ty sNres lfllO tQully $h;uts 

,~eroru 
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During the year end March 31, 2024, Company has recognned in the statement of profit and loss· 
a) neereoancn expense from nght-to-use of INR 2 19 (INR : N1L 31 March 2023) 
b) Interest expense on lease hab1l1t1es of INR 0.82 (INR: NIL 31 March 2023) 
c) Expense relating to short term leases of INR N1l flNR :NIL 31 March 2023) 

P1rtlcul1rs As 1t Morch 31 2024 As 1t Morch 31 2023 

Less than 1 year 1.64 2.27 
One to ftve vcars 7.72 5.03 
Total 10.36 7.30 

The details of contractual maturities of lease liab1ln1es as at 31st March 2024, on unoeccunted bam ire as fol!ows 

Putlculars 
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 

Opening Balance 11 /8 11./8 
~dd1tion/Mod1ficatt()n 
~letion 
Fm,mcecon 0.82 
lease payment (2141 
Total 10.36 11.78 

Following are the changes in value of lease L1ab1hty for the year end March 31. 2024. 

Particular> As at March 31, 2024 As at Morch 31, 2023 

Current lease habrhnes 0.61 
Non· Current lease leabll,t1es 9.75 

Toti I 10.36 

Following ,s the bn~ak up ol lhe current and noo current lease hab1ht1es as at March 31. 2024 

Note : 32. tesses 

Total 

Ju at March 31, 2023 

h1lm.Hcd .1mount of contrut-1 rcm1inlng to be occulcd on caDllal account ,md not provided for 

Note: 31. C.Dltllend othercommltmentl 

Total 

Giur.1n1eu I Counter Guuanteu prCMdrd by the Company on bthaK of othtrs 
Olhers 

Ju at March 31. 2024 Putk:ulars Ju •t March 31, 2023 

Dkouted lncom.,uw li.lb,ll1ie1 
01soutcd ~1u Tu /GST lJabd111cs 
Ohputcd La:tlC' •nd Service i,w llabihtics 

Note: 30. Contlnunt U.bllltws 

The foUowl"• .. -•nu ere ............ _.. contrlbutkxu to the ddlned berwflt Dian In future wars 
Partkullr$ G~tultv I 

JtJ at March 31. 2024 JtJ at Muc.h 31. 2023 I 
hp,tcled ~m~r «>nt11bubon, 
Exptcted total '*'tftt p.ymenu 
Yc•r 1 o.oi 
Vu,} 001 
Y~•r 3 o.oi 
y~., .. 0.07 
Yut 5 0.01 
Ntlfl 'iVtM\ 01' 

P1rtk:ul1r~ As at March ll, 2024 As at March 31. 2023 

Discount rate Current Year 7.ll" / 16" 
Discount rate Pre aous Year 
Salary growth nte {per annum) 600'1 10.00% 
Attrition Rate 2.00% 10 00" 
geurement Age 60 60 
Prc·reurement monahty 000% 000% 
Olub11,ty 0.00'> 000% 
Weighted average duration of 080 

Partlculm As tt Much 31, 2024 JtJ •t Much ll. 2023 

No. of members 1n service 44 8 
~vg Age (yrs.) •115 4600 
Avg. Past Ser'VICe (yrs) 1 07 
Avg. Sal. Mly (Rs.) 65,075 l.77.844 
Weighted average duration of 080 

The pr1nc1pal usumpttons used 1n detemuning gratuity and love encashment for the Company's plan are shown betcw 

,1ncroru 
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The Company ,s exposed to market risk, credu risk and liqu1d1ty nsk. The Company's senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Company's senior management is supported by a financial nsk 
committee that adwses on financial risks and the appropriate financial nsk governance framework for the Company. The f1nanetal nsk committee provides assurance to the Company's Sll!!nior management that the 
Company's fmanc1al rislc acnvues are governed bv appropriate polioes and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managedm accordance with the Company's policies and risk objecuves. 
AJI derivative activities for risk management purposes are carried out by specialist teams that have the appropriate skills, experience and supervision. It 1s the Company's policy that no trading in derivatives for 
speculative purposes may be undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summansed below. 

Note : 35. Anancl1I risk m1n1gement objectives ond pQildes 
The Company'!. pnnopal f1nanc1al hab1ht1es, other than derivatives, comprise loans and bouowmgs, uade and other payables. The mam purpose of these hnanc1al habrhues is to fmanc:e the Company's operations 
and to prcvde guarantees to support us operations. The Company's principal fmancial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive duectly from 1U operations. The 
Company also enters into derivative transactions. 

March 31 2023 Clrrvln•Amoont Falr value 
Fln1ndals Assets FVTPL FVOO Amortised Cost Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

I. Non Current Anandals Assets 
(•) loans 
(1i) Others 

II CUrTent Ananclals Assets 
(1) Trade Receivables 1.64 
(1i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 18.29 
(iii} Bank balances other than (ti) above 
(1v) loans 
(v) Oenvattves instruments 
(vol Others 0.75 
Tot.I - - 20.69 - - - 
Anand1ls U1blll~es 

I. Non CurTent Ananclals L11bllltles 
(1) Borrowings - 
(,i) Leases 
(1i1) Other 

II OJrTent Anandals Uabllltles 
(1) Borrowmgs 
(11) Leases 
(111} Others 2.08 
l!,vl Tr1de Pavables 0.40 
Total - 2.48 

March 31 2024 Carrvln• Amount Fair value 
Ananclals Assets FVTPL FVOO Amortised Cost Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

I. Non CUrTent Anandals Assets 
(•) loans 
(11) Others 1.67 

II CUrTent Anandals Assets 
(1) Trade Receivables 14.50 
(1i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 1.34 
(iii) Bank balances other than (Ii) above 0.26 
(,vi) Loans 
(v) Derivatives instruments 
llvil Others 5.18 
Total 22.94 

Flnand1ls Uabllltles 
I. Non current An1nd1ls Uabllltles 

(1) Borro.,..,ngs 
(11) Leases 9.75 
(1ii)Other 

II CUrTent An1ndals U1bllltles 
(1) Borrowings 17.72 
(•ii Leases 0.61 
(iii} Others 1.74 

lhvl Trade Pavables • 73 
Total - 34.SS - - 

Note : 34. Accounting dusiftcation and fllr values 
Carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and f1nanc1al l1ab1lit1es, includmg their levels in the fair value hierarchy, are presented below. 

Partkulars ..... .. ... 
Marffl 31. 2024 March 31. 2023 

Revenue wrthm lndta 41.31 82.03 
Rest of the World 

41.31 82.03 

Note : 33. Segment Information 
The company rs 1n the business of Manufacturing of specrehtv Chemicals and accordingly has one reportable busmess segment 
Geographical Information 

,1ncrort1 
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Purpose I Nature of Instrument ~rrency AJ at March 31, 2024 AJ at Morch 31, 2023 
Amount In foreign currency Amount In Rupees Amount In foreign Amount In 

currency Rupees 

Receivables EUR 
Receivables JPY 
Receivables USO 
Payables EUR 
Payables JPY 
Pavabtes USO 1.64 138.13 0.02 0.01 

Note : 36. Dlsdosures al for•IIP' currency eJq>OSure 
Particulars of unhedged Foreign Currency Assets and l1ab1ltties as at the Balance Sheet date: 

Pardallus -Yeartnded 31st March 2023 Bonow Ines Tredt and Other ftnenc .. 11 .. bllttM, 
othtrn..,..bles 

On demand 
less than 1 vear 0.40 2.08 
1 • 3 Years 
3 • 5 Years 
Mme than 5 Years 
Total 0.40 2.08 

hl1k:ulars-YNrtndtd 31st Mu~h 2024 Bonowtncs Tradt ind Othtr ftn.1ndal lt.abHtdt1 
otherp,.,..bles 

On demand 
Less than 1 vear 17.72 4.73 1 74 
1- 3 Years 
3 · 5 Years 
More than 5 Years 
Total 17.72 4.73 1.74 

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's f1nanc1al hab1ht1es based on contractual unduccunted payments 

Uquldlty Risk 
liquidity risk 1s the nsk that the entity will encounter difficulty in meeting the obhgatlons associated with rts financial habrhties that are settled by dehvenng cash or another Imenctal asset. 
The entity's approach to managing hqu1d1ty ,s to ensure as far as possible, that 1t will have sufficient liqu1d1tv to meet its hab1ht1es when they are due Mcmagement monitors rdling forecasts of the entity's l,qu1d1ty 
pos1t1on and cash and cash equivalents on the basts of expected cash flows. The entity takes mto account the liquidity of the market m which the enurv operated 

Price risk 
Ctedlt Risk 
Credit risk ,s the nsk that counterparty will not meet its obhgat,ons under a f1nanc1al instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company rs exposed to credit nsk from ,ts oper,t1ng activities 
(primarily trade receivables) and from its f1nancmg ecnvmes. including deposits with banks and hnanc,al msutuncns, foreign exchange transactions and other fmanetal instruments. 

P1rtk.uler Fortheynrer'lded 31.Jt March 2024 For the yur ended llst Muc.h 2023 

5" 1pprK11tlon I.S"dtpl'K&ltlon 5" 1ppr.cl1Uon "dtindltlon 
RecelV1ble 
USO/INR 
EUR/INR 

Payable 
USO/INR 16.91) 6.91 0.00 0.01 
EUR/INR 

Foreign currency sensltlvity 
The following table details the Company1s sens1t1V1ty to a 5% appreciation and depredation m the INR against the relevant foreign currencies net of hedge accountmg impact. 
The sensitivity analysis mdudes only outstanding foreign currency denornmated monetary items and adjusts their tra11slat1on at the year·end for a 5% change rn foreign currency rates, ""'th all other vanabtes held 
constant. A posiuve number below indicates an mcrease m profit or equity where INR strengthens 5% against the relevant currency. For a 5% weakemng or INR against the relevant currency, there would be a 
comparable impact on profu or equity, and the balances below would be negative. 

Interest rate risk 
Interest rate nsk ,s the nsk that the fair vatue or future cash flows of a f1nanc1al instrument will fluctuate because of changes m market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market 
interest rates relates primarily to the Company's long-term debt obhgattons with floating interest rates. 

ForellP' CJrrency Risk 
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash tlows of an exposure w1U fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company's exposure to the nsk of changes m foreign exchange 
rates relates primarily to the Company1s operating activtties (when revenue or expense is denominated ma foreign currency). 

Market Risk 
Market risk ,s the rnk that the fair value of future cash flows of a f1nanc1al instrument will fluctuate because of changes m mar~et prices. Market nsk compmes three types of nsk; interest rate nsk, currency nsk 
and other pnce ruk, such as equity pnce nsk. Fmenctal instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowmgs, deposits. investments and derivative fmencra! instruments. 

The sens1t1Y1ty analyses m the follo1Amg sections relate to the ccs.ncn as at March 31. 2024 and March 31, 2023 

The analvs,s excludes the impact of movements m market variables on: the carrV1ng values of gratuity and other post-retirement obhgauons and crowncns. 

The following assumptions have been mode In colculotlng the sensltMty analyses: 
The sensmvrtv of the relevant profit or loss Item is the effect of the assumed ch1nges in respective market risks. This 1s based on the hnanetal assets and fmanc1al hab1ht1es held at March 31. 2024 and March 31. 
2023 

,1ncroru 
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Al per our report of even date attached 

As required by the relevant rules, the Company has deposited the unspent amount ma specified bank account subsequent to the year end wnhin the reqveed tlmellnes. 

Note : 41. rrevious year figures have been rcgroupcd/rcarr:rngcd where necessary to conform to current year's classification. 

No PartJcul:ir For the Year ended 31st Morch 2024 Fer the Year ended 31st March 2023 I 
(I) Amount required to be spent by the company curing the year 0.13 0.00 111) Amount of expenditure incurred 0.14 O.Ol (Ill) shortfall at the end of year 
(Iv) total of previous year shortfall 
(v) reason of shonfall There is no shonfall There is no shortfall 
(vi) Nature of CSR activities The CSR initiatives of the Comcany aim towards environment protection through safety practices. women empowerment and 

education m dist Sanga,eddy, parancheru area: 

Note No. 40 - Detail of Corporate Soclal Responslbllfty (CSR) Expenditure 
As per Src:tion llS of tht Com~nie.s Act, 2013, 1 CQmpany, m«tirl1 lht: ~pphUbllity thruho)d, nuds co sprnd at lrut 2% of its IVC!rii&e net profit (o, tr.e 'mmediauilyp,rctdin11hru fin.anc~I yHrs on corpl>l'olte social resoon11b11ity (CSlt) utrvitics The a,us 
for CSR activities .are W11tr ~n11ement Prognmmri, enwironmtn~I sust11nao1litv ;iind a1riaJlturl' C1tvl'loomen1: Promot11"& eduult0n .amoncst Ch,ldren: promotJna hnlth cue lndvd1n1 prevent,ve hulth care and u111t;ii1,on and O,nst,r M.anagerrent: 
Contfibvtton tow¥di C<lmb.1t1n1 COVIO P.1ndemlc.. Sl..ip?O•tlfll womtn Empowerment Pro1ecu; and lt.ur,I Oh·elopment ?ro~c~ AC.SR commrtttt hu bttn ro,med by the comoar:v u i:ier the A<L rne funch wcrt p,imanlyutiliud throuah th• ynr on these 
activ1tiu whidl are sptcifitd in Schedule VII of tht Companits Act, 2013: 

ix) The Company has no ci'1i1rges or satisfaction which Is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period. 
x) Subsequent Event 

Th~, e are no suosequent events whrch require disclosurl!: or adiustment subsequent to the Betance Sheet date. 

(bl provides any guarantee, secuntv or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries 

iv) The Comoany has not advanced or loaned or Invested fund to any otherperson(s) or enuty(iesJ, including foreign entitles (intermediaries) with the understanding (whetner recorded in writing or otherwise) that 
the Company shall: 

(a) directly or indlrectly lends or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company 
(ultimate beneficiaries) or 

lb) provides any guarantee, security or the 11ke on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries 

v) Quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks or financial instltutrons are m agreement with the books of accounts. 
vi) The Company has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which it was obtained 

vii) The Company does not have any transactions with companies which are struck off 

viii} The Company is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or lender during the year 

(a) directly or indirectly lends or invest in other persons or entitles identified in any manner whatsoever bv or on behalf of the funding 
party (ultimate beneficiaries) or 

Note No. 38 - Other statutory Information 

1) The Company does not have anv oenam1 property, where anv proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Comudny fo1 holding any benam, property. 
ii) The Company has not traded or invested in C~pto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year. 

iii) The Company has not received any funds from any person{s) or entity(iesl. including foreign entities (funding party) with the understanding (whether recorded m wrltmg or otherwise! that the Company shall: 

No changes made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital dunng the years ended Maren 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023. 

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's camta! management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants anachea to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that 
define capital structure requirements. 

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 

Borrowings 17.72 
Trade Payables 4.73 0.40 
Less: Cash ana cash equivalents 1.60 18.29 
Net debt 20.86 -17.90 
Equity 46.93 46.33 
Reserves ·27.00 -23.98 
Total Capital 19.92 22.94 

Capital and net debt 40.78 5.04 
Geilring ratio 51'1 -355" ~ 

llnCrorti 
Note: 37. Capital management 
The primary objectrve of the Company's capital management is to ma:dmise the shareholder value. 
The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjuu the capital structure, the 
Company may adjust the divideno payment :o shareholders, return capita! to shareholders or usue new shares. The Company monitors capital using :1 geanng reuo, which is net debt divided by total c.apital pli..:s 
net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents. 
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c, in Crores) 

Particulars For the year ended 31 March For the year ended 31 March .,n.,.,_ .,ft~~ 
Transactions during the Yur : 

1 Sales of Goods· Ncogcn Chcnucals Ltd 4 6J 

Jnh work charges· Ncogcn Chcmic.als Ltd 0 07 

2 Expenses 

Purchase of goods· Ncogcn Chcn1iuls Ltd JI 16 

!merest on - JCD -Ncogcn ChcmicaJs O so 
Purchase of services - Ncogcn Chemicals Ltd 0 24 

C0tpratc gua1&11lcc • payable to Neogm c-hcm1Qls Ltd 002 

3 Inter-corpnrate Depnstts 

Received from Ncogcn Chcm1u.ls Lid 25 00 

Repayment or Depcsu - Ncogcn Chcmiclas Ltd (18 00) 

4 Silting Fees paid to dirutors 

Sa1~ay Meh1a 0 0175 

Hitcsh Rcshamwela 0 0060 

5 Balancu o/s at the )'ta.- end 

Inter Co1po111c Deposit (ICD) · Ncogcn Chemicals ltd 7 00 

lntcrest Payable on ICD - Neogen Chemcials Ltd 0 72 

Receivable -Seoscn Chemicals 7 J6 

03-05-2023 
03-05-2023 
03-05-2023 
03-05-2023 
03-05-2023 
04-08-2023 
09-02-2024 
13-05-2023 

Datt or appointmtnt 

Note:39 Details of related party transactions during the period: 
A. Details of related parties 

(i) Holding company - Neogen Chemicals Limited 
(II) Name of the party 

A. Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 
Haridas Kanani - Chairman and Executive Director 
Dr. Harin Kanani - Executive Director 
Shyamsunder Upadhyay - Whole Time Director 
Anurag Surana - Non Executive & Non Independent Director 
Sanjay Mehta - Independent Director 
Hitesh Reshamwala - lndpendent Director 
Nikhil Jain - CFO 
Rajgaurav Maurya - Company secretary 

B. Companies over which the Directors have significant influence or control 
Neogen Chemicals Limited 
Neogen Ionics Limited 
Kagashin Global Network Private Ltd 
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